Tariff Schedule Applicable to

Resold and Facilities-Based

Competitive Local Exchange Services

Furnished by

Airus, Inc.

Between Points Within the State of Missouri

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of service for telecommunications services provided by Airus, Inc. in exchanges that are currently served by Southwestern Bell Telephone, L.P., d/b/a AT&T Missouri, Embarq Missouri, Inc. d/b/a Embarq, CenturyTel of Missouri, LLC and Spectra Communications Group LLC d/b/a CenturyTel, as listed in those companies' Missouri local exchange tariffs.

This tariff is on file with the Missouri Public Service Commission, and copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, at the Company's principal place of business 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor, Chicago, IL 60607. The Company can be reached at (312) 878-4162.

Airus has been certified to operate as a Competitive Telecommunications Company Under the Revised Statutes of Missouri, pursuant to Order issued February 2, 2010, effective February 12, 2010 in Case No. LA-2010-0170.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### WAIVER OF STATUES AND COMMISSON RULES

Airus, Inc. ("Airus") is classified as a competitive telecommunications company and the following statutory provisions and Commission rules have been waived with respect to the Company's provision of switched access telecommunications services as set forth herein:

Statutes:	Rules:
392.210.2	4 CSR 240-3.550(4) Held Orders & (5) (A) Quarterly Service
392.240.1	4 CSR 240-10.020
392.270	4 CSR 240-30.040
392.280	4 CSR 240-32.060
392.290	4 CSR 240-32.070
392.300	4 CSR 240-32.080
392.310	
392.320	4 CSR 240-33.040(1) through (3) & (5) through (10)
392.330	4 CSR 240-33.045
392.340	4 CSR 240-33.080(1)
	4 CSR 240-33.130(1) (4) and (5)
	4 CSR 240-32.050(4) (B) provide "white page" telephone directories in the St. Louis and Kansas City metropolitan areas.
	As a competitive local exchange carrier operating in the St.
	Louis and Kansas City metropolitan areas, the Company is given a partial exemption from 4 CSR 240-32.050(4)(B), in that, when AT&T does not automatically deliver a directory to the Company's subscribers, the Company may discharge its
	obligation to distribute such directories by instructing its end-

user customers to (a) contact the Company for a copy of the directory (who will in turn forward the request to AT&T; or, alternatively, (b) contact AT&T directly for a copy of the

Issued: April 11, 2014

directory.

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### Table of Contents

Title S	Sheet	1
Waive	er of Rules and Regulations	2
Table	of Contents	3
Expla	nation of Symbols	6
Tariff	Format	7
Section	on 1 - Technical Terms of Abbreviations	8
Section	on 2 - Rules and Regulations	11
2.1	Undertaking of the Company	11
2.2	Limitations	13
2.3	Obligations of the Customer	14
2.4	Liability of the Company	18
	2.4.1 Limitations on Liability	18
2.5	Application for Service	
	2.5.1 Minimum Contract Period	
	2.5.2 Cancellation of Service	24
2.6	Payment for Service	26
2.7	Customer Deposits	27
	2.7.1 Deposit or Guarantee of Payment	27
	2.7.2 Return of Deposit	28
	2.7.3 Interest on Deposits	28
2.8	Customer Complaints and Billing disputes	
2.9	Allowances for Interruptions in Service	
	2.9.1 General	
	2.9.2 Limitations on Allowances	
	2.9.3 Application of Credits for Interruptions of Service	32
2.10	Taxes and Fees	33
2.11	Returned Check Charge	33
2.12	Restoration of Service	33

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### Table of Contents (Cont'd)

2.13	Reserved for Future Use				
2.14	Disconnection and Termination of Service	35			
	2.14.1 Disconnection of Service Without Notice	35			
	2.14.2 Disconnection of Service Requiring Notice	36			
2.15	Unlawful Use of Service	38			
2.16	Interference with or Impairment of Service	39			
2.17	Incomplete Calls	40			
2.18	Overcharge	40			
2.18	Notices	41			
2.20	Minimum Call Completion Rate	41			
2.21	Emergency Calling	42			
	2.21.1 General	42			
	2.21.2 911 Requirements	43			
2.22	Special Construction	44			
Sectio	on 3 - Description Of Services	45			
3.1	Trial Services	45			
3.2	Promotional Offerings	46			
3.3	Individual Case Basis ("ICB") Offerings	45			
3.4	Directory Listings/Distribution	47			
3.5	Number Intercept Service	47			
3.6	Calling Scopes/Exchanges	47			
3.7	Call Trace Service	48			
	3.7.1 CenturyTel and Spectra Communications Exchanges	48			
	3.7.2 Embarg Exchanges				
	3.7.3 AT&T Missouri Exchanges	50			
3.8	Local Exchange Service	51			
	3.8.1 CenturyTel Local Calling Exchanges				
	3.8.2 AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges	56			
	3.8.3 Spectra Communications Local Calling Exchanges				
	3.8.4 Embarq Local Calling Exchanges				
3.9	Calling Scopes				
3.10	Custom Calling Services	70			

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### Table of Contents (Cont'd)

Sect	ion 4 - Ra	ates and Charges	71
4.1	Calcula	tion of Rates	71
	4.1.1	Business Service - AT&T Missouri Exchanges	71
	4.1.2	Business Service - CenturyTel Missouri Exchanges	74
	4.1.3	Business Service - Embarq Missouri Exchanges	76
	4.1.4	Business Service - Spectra Communications Exchanges	78
	Director	y Assistance Service	80
	4.2.1	AT&T Missouri Exchanges	80
	4.2.2	CenturyTel Missouri Exchanges	80
	4.2.3	Embarq Missouri Exchanges	80
	4.2.4	Spectra Communications Exchanges	80
	Custom	Calling Services	81
	4.3.1	AT&T Missouri Exchanges	81
	4.3.2	CenturyTel Missouri Exchanges	81
	4.3.3	Embarq Missouri Exchanges	82
	4.3.4	Spectra Communications Exchanges	82

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

- (C) To signify a changed regulation
- (D) To signify a discontinued rate or regulation
- (I) To signify an increase in a rate
- (M) To signify text or rates relocated without change
- (N) To signify a new rate or regulation or other text
- (R) To signify a reduction in a rate
- (T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

# TARIFF FORMAT

- A. **Page Numbering** Page numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Pages are numbered sequentially. However, new pages are occasionally added to the tariff. When a new page is added between pages already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new page added between Page 14 and 15 would be 14.1.
- B. Page Revision Numbers Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. These numbers are used to determine the most current page version on file with the Commission. For example, the 4<sup>th</sup> revised Page 14 cancels the 3<sup>rd</sup> revised Page 14.
- C. **Paragraph Numbering Sequence** There are various levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its next higher level:

2 2.1 2.1.1 2.1.1.1

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### Section 1. TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

- "Access Line" refers to an analog line or a digital voice-grade equivalent line used to connect an end-user to a company's central office.
- "Applicant" refers to an individual, partnership, corporation, association, or government agency who applies to the Company for any new or additional telephone service.
- "Basic Local Telecommunications service" refers to a two-way switched voice service within a local calling scope as determined by the commission comprised of any of the following services and their recurring and nonrecurring charges:
- "Business Hours" refers to the time after 8:00 A.M. and before 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday excluding holidays.
- "Call" refers to a Customer's attempted telecommunications transmission whether completed or not.
- "Central Office" refers to the facility housing one (1) or more switching units in a telecommunications system which provides service to the general public and has the necessary equipment and operating arrangements for terminating and interconnecting customer lines and trunks or trunks only.

"Company" refers to Airus, Inc.

"Commission" refers to the Missouri Public Service Commission.

"Completed call" or "Message" is a call which the Company's network has determined has been answered by a person, answering machine, fax machine, computer modem device, or other answering device.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### Section 1. <u>TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS(Cont'd)</u>

- "Customer" refers to the firm, company, corporation, or other entity that contracts for service under this tariff and that is responsible for the payment of charges as well as compliance with the Company's regulations pursuant to this tariff.
- "Exchange" refers to a geographical area for the administration of telecommunications services, established and described by the tariff of a telecommunications company providing basic local telecommunications service
- "Local Access Transport Area ("LATA")" refers to a geographical area established by the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia in Civil Action No. 820192, that defines the permissible areas of operations for the Bell Operating companies.
- "Local Exchange Telecommunications Service" refers to telecommunications service between points within an exchange.
- "Nonrecurring Charges" refer to a one-time charge associated with given service or item of equipment which applies on a per-service and/or per item basis each time the service or item of equipment is provided.
- "Service" refers to and includes not only the use and accommodations afforded consumers or patrons, but also any product or commodity furnished by any corporation, person or public utility and the plant, equipment, apparatus, appliances, property and facilities employed by any corporation, person or public utility in performing any service or in furnishing any product or commodity and devoted to the public purposes of such corporation, person or public utility, and to the use and accommodation of consumers or patrons.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### Section 1. TECHNICAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS(Cont'd)

- "Station" refers to a point of input to or output from the network, including a telephone instrument or other terminal device.
- "Tariffs" refer to a schedule of rates, services and rules approved by the Commission.
- "Telecommunications Company" refers to and includes telephone corporations as that term is used in the statutes of this state and every corporation, company, association, joint stock company or association, partnership and person, their lessees, trustees or receivers appointed by any court whatsoever, owning, operating, controlling or managing any facilities used to provide telecommunications service for hire, sale or resale within the State of Missouri.
- "Telecommunications Facilities" refer to and includes lines, conduits, ducts, poles, wires, cables, crossarms, receivers, transmitters, instruments, machines, appliances and all devices, real estate, easements, apparatus, property and routes used, operated, controlled or owned by any telecommunications company to facilitate the provision of telecommunications service.
- "Telecommunications Service", the transmission of information by wire, radio, optical cable, electronic impulses, or other similar means
- "Telephone Numbers" refer to The North American Numbering Plan [NPA-NXX-XXXX] numbers assigned to Customers and used in conjunction with the Services provided pursuant to this tariff.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 2.1 Undertaking of the Company
  - 2.1.1 This tariff contains the regulations, rates and charges applicable to facilities-based and resold interexchange and/or local exchange services provided by the Company that originate and terminate within the State of Missouri. This tariff is applicable to the provision of services within the service areas and exchanges served by AT&T Missouri, Embarq, CenturyTel and Spectra Communications.
  - 2.1.2 The Company installs (or may utilize vendors service to install), operates and maintains the communications services provided herein in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this tariff. It may act as the Customer's agent for ordering access connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities when authorized by the Customer, to allow connection of a Customer's location to the Company's network. The Customer will be responsible for all charges due for such service arrangement.
  - 2.1.3 The Company's services are provided on a monthly basis unless ordered on a longer term basis, and are available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week.
  - 2.1.4 The Company's services are available to business/non-residential Customers.
  - 2.1.5 The Company will perform routine tests, make traffic studies, and maintain records required to determine the facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to maintain an acceptable quality of service at all times.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

- 2.1 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)
  - 2.1.6 The Company's services are allowed to be resold only by Companies who are certificated by the Commission.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

### SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

#### 2.2 Limitations

- 2.2.1 Service is offered subject to the provisions of this tariff.
- 2.2.2 The Company's reserves the right to discontinue furnishing service, or limit the use of service necessitated by conditions beyond its control: or when the Customer is using service in violation of the law or the provisions of this tariff.
- 2.2.3 All regulations and conditions contained in this tariff will apply to all such permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions for service.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.3 Obligations of the Customer
  - 2.3.1 The Customer will be responsible for:
    - 2.3.1.1 The payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff.
    - 2.3.1.2 Reimbursing the Company for damage to, or loss of the Company's equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer; or the noncompliance by the Customer, with these regulations, or by fire or theft or other casualty on the Customer's premises unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company.
    - 2.3.1.3 Providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed space and power to operate the Company's equipment installed on the Customer's premises.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.3 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd)
  - 2.3.1.4 Complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions on the premises at which the Company's employees and agents will be installing or maintaining the Company's equipment. The Customer may be required to install and maintain the Company's equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion, injury or damage to the Company's employees or property might result from installation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer will be responsible for identifying, monitoring, removing and disposing of any hazardous material prior to any installation work.
  - 2.3.1.5 Complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents, approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the location of the Company's equipment in any Customer premises for the purpose of installing, inspecting, maintaining, repairing, or upon termination of service as stated herein, removing the equipment of the Company.
  - 2.3.1.6 Making Company equipment available periodically for maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. No allowance for interruptions in service will be made for the period during which service is interrupted for such purposes.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.3 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd)
  - 2.3.2 With respect to any service provided by the Company, the Customer will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from all claims, actions, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses for:
    - 2.3.2.1 Any loss, destruction or damage to property of the Company or any third party, or injury to persons, including, but not limited to, employees or invitees of either the Company or the Customer, to the extent caused by or resulting from the negligent or intentional act or omission of the Customer, its employees, agents, representatives or invitees; or
    - 2.3.2.2 Any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any copyright, patent, trade secret, or any proprietary infringement of any copyright, patent, trade secret, or any proprietary or intellectual property right of any third party, arising from any act or omission by the Customer.
  - 2.3.3 The Customer is responsible for ensuring that customer-provided equipment connected to Company equipment is compatible with such equipment. The connection, operation, testing, or maintenance of such equipment will be such as not to cause damage to the Company-provided equipment or injury to the Company's employees or other persons. Any additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury will be provided by the Company at the Customer's expense.
  - 2.3.4 The Company's services may be connected to the services or other communications carriers only when authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the tariffs or contracts which are applicable to such connections.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.3 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd)
  - 2.3.5 Upon reasonable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer is complying with the requirements set forth in this tariff for the installation, operation, and maintenance of customer-provided facilities and equipment that is connected to Company-owned equipment.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.4 Liability of the Company

#### 2.4.1 Limitations on Liability

- A. Except as otherwise stated in this section, the liability of the Company for damages arising out of either: (1) the furnishing of its services, including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, or errors, or other defects, representations, or use of these services, or (2) the failure to furnish its service, whether caused by acts or omission, will be limited to the extension of allowances to the Customer for interruptions in service as set forth in Section 2.9.
- B. Except for the extension of allowances to the Customer for interruptions in service as set forth in Section 2.9, the Company will not be liable to a Customer or third party for any direct, indirect, special, incidental, reliance, consequential, exemplary or punitive damages, including, but not limited to, loss of revenue or profits, for any reason whatsoever, including, but not limited to, any act or omission, failure to perform, delay, interruption, failure to provide any service or any failure in or breakdown of facilities associated with the service.
- C. The liability of the Company for errors in billing that result in overpayment by the Customer will be limited to a credit equal to the dollar amount erroneously billed or, in the event that payment has been made and service has been discontinued, to a refund of the amount erroneously billed.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)
  - 2.4.1 Limitations on Liability
    - D. The Company will not be liable for any claims for loss or damages involving:
      - 1. Any act or omission of: (a) the Customer, (b) any other entity furnishing service, equipment or facilities for use in conjunction with services or facilities provided by the Company; or (c) common carriers or warehousemen;
      - 2. Any delay or failure of performance or equipment due to causes beyond the Company's control, including but not limited to, acts of God, fires, floods, earthquakes, catastrophes; hurricanes. other national or emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars or other civil commotions; strikes, lockouts, work stoppages or other labor difficulties; criminal actions taken against the Company; unavailability, failure or malfunction of equipment or facilities provided by the Customer or third parties; and any law, order, regulation or other action of any governing authority or agency thereof;
      - 3. Any unlawful or unauthorized use of the Company's facilities and services;
      - 4. Libel, slander, invasion of privacy or infringement of patents, trade secrets, or copyrights arising from or in connection with the transmission of communications by means of Company-provided facilities or services; or by means of the combination of Company-provided facilities or services with Customer-provided facilities or services;

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

#### 2.4.1 Limitations on Liability

- 5. Breach in the privacy or security of communications transmitted over the Company's facilities;
- 6. Changes in any of the facilities, operations or procedures of the Company that render any equipment, facilities or services provided by the Customer obsolete, or require modification or alteration of such equipment, facilities or services, or otherwise affect their use or performance, except where reasonable notice is required by the Company and is not provided to the Customer, in which event the Company's liability is limited as set forth in paragraph A of this Subsection 2.4.1.
- 7. Defacement of or damage to Customer premises resulting from the furnishing of services or equipment on such premises or the installation or removal thereof;
- 8. Injury to property or injury or death to persons, including claims for payments made under Workers' Compensation law or under any plan for employee disability or death benefits, arising out of, or caused by, any act or omission of the Customer, or the construction, installation, maintenance, presence, use or removal of the Customer's facilities or equipment connected, or to be connected to the Company's facilities;

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

#### 2.4.1 Limitations on Liability

- 9. Any intentional, wrongful act of a Company employee when such act is not within the scope of the employee's responsibilities for the Company and/or is not authorized by the Company;
- 10. Any representations made by Company employees that do not comport, or that are inconsistent, with the provisions of this Tariff;
- 11. Any act or omission in connection with the provision of 911, E911, or similar services;
- 12. Any noncompletion of calls due to network busy conditions;
- 13. Any calls not actually attempted to be completed during any period that service is unavailable.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)

#### 2.4.1 Limitations on Liability

- E. The Company will be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer or end user from and against any and all claims, loss, demands, suits, expense, or other action or any liability whatsoever, including attorney fees, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the Customer or by any other party, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage or destruction of any property, including environmental contamination, whether owned by the Customer or by any other party, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, presence, condition, location, use or removal of any Company or Customer equipment or facilities or service provided by the Company.
- F. The Company does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to installations provided by it for use in an explosive atmosphere. The Company will be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer from and against any and all claims, loss, demands, suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, including attorney fees, whether suffered, made, instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage or destruction of any property, including environmental contamination, whether owned by the Customer or by any other party, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, presence, condition, location, use or removal of any equipment or facilities or the service.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.4 Liability of the Company (Cont'd)
  - 2.4.1 Limitations on Liability
    - G. The Company assumes no responsibility for the availability or performance of any cable or satellite systems or related facilities under the control of other entities, or for other facilities provided by other entities used for service to the Customer, even if the Company has acted as the Customer's agent in arranging for such facilities or services. Such facilities are provided subject to such degree of protection or nonpreemptibility as may be provided by the other entities.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.5 Application for Service
  - 2.5.1 Minimum Contract Period
    - 2.5.1.1 Except as otherwise provided, the minimum contract period is one month for all services furnished. However, if a new Customer notifies the Company within twenty days after receipt of the first bill that certain services or equipment are not desired, the Company will delete such services or equipment from the Customer's account without a record keeping or service ordering charge. The Customer nonetheless will be responsible for all monthly usage and installation charges incurred for the use of such service and equipment.
    - 2.5.1.2 Except as provided in 2.5.2.1, the length of minimum contract period for directory listings, and for joint user service where the listing actually appears in the directory, is the directory period. The directory period is from the day on which the directory is first distributed to Customers to the day the succeeding directory is first distributed to Customers.
    - 2.5.1.3 The Company may require a minimum contract period longer than one month in connection with special, non-standard types or arrangements of equipment necessary to meet special demands for service.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.5 Application for Service (Cont'd)
  - 2.5.2 Cancellation of Service
    - 2.5.2.1 Where the applicant cancels an order for service prior to the start of the installation no charge will apply, except to the extent the Company incurs a service order or similar charge from a supplying carrier.
    - 2.5.2.2 The Company reserves the right to redefine its regions, add new regions, or remove regions from its current offering, as it deems appropriate in its sole discretion and will provide the Customer with at least thirty (30) days' notice of any change in the definition of the Company's regions.
    - 2.5.2.3 In the event that the Company plans to exit a current region, the Customer will be provided with thirty (30) days prior written notification of the Company's intent. The Customer will be allowed to immediately terminate services in the affected region without penalty.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.6 Payment for Service
  - 2.6.1 The Company will bill Customer monthly, with recurring charges being billed in advance and any usage charges billed in arrears. Payment is due upon receipt by Customer and payable within thirty (30) days of the Bill Date (the "Due Date"). The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for service furnished to the Customer. Charges based on actual usage during a month will be billed monthly in the month following the month in which the service was used. All fixed monthly and nonrecurring charges for services ordered will be billed monthly in advance.
  - 2.6.2 Payments are past due if not received by the Company by the Due Date. A late payment charge of 1.5% will be assessed on all unpaid balances more than thirty (30) days old. Bills not paid within thirty (30) days of the Bill Date and which have not been disputed in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.8.1 of this tariff, may result in suspension of service until the overdue payments and any additional charges that may be imposed to restore service have been paid. Customer agrees to pay all costs incurred by the Company in collecting any unpaid amounts, including attorneys' fees.
  - 2.6.3 The Company reserves the right to require from an applicant for service advance payments of fixed charges and nonrecurring charges. The advance payment will not exceed an amount equal to the nonrecurring charge(s) and one month's charges for the service. The advance payment will be applied to any indebtedness for the service for which the advance payment is made on the Customer's initial bill.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.7 Customer Deposits
  - 2.7.1 Deposit or Guarantee of Payment

The Company may require a deposit or guarantee of payment from any Customer or applicant who has not established good credit with the Company. Deposit or guarantee of payment requirements as prescribed by the Company will be based upon standards which bear a reasonable relationship to the assurance of payment. A deposit will not exceed an estimated two months' gross bill or existing two months' bill where applicable. All deposits will be in addition to payment of an outstanding bill or a part of such bill as has been resolved to the satisfaction of the Company, except where such bill has been discharged in bankruptcy. The Company may determine whether a Customer has established good credit with the Company, except as herein restricted:

- 2.7.1.1 A Customer, who within the last 12 months has not had service disconnected for nonpayment of a bill and has not been liable for disconnection of service for nonpayment of a bill, and the bill is not in dispute, will be deemed to have established good credit.
- 2.7.1.2 The Company will not require a deposit or a guarantee of payment based upon income, home ownership, residential location, employment tenure, nature of occupation, race, color, creed, sex, marital status, age, national origin, or any other criteria which does not bear a reasonable relationship to the assurance of payment or which is not authorized by this Section.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.7 Customer Deposits (Cont'd)
  - 2.7.2 Return of Deposit

After satisfactory payment of all undisputed charges for a twelve month period the deposit with accrued interest will be promptly returned or credited against charges on subsequent bills. Upon termination of service, the deposit with accrued interest will be credited to the final bill and the balance will be returned within twentyone (21) days to the Customer.

2.7.3 Interest on Deposits

Interest will be paid on deposits at a rate equal to one percent (1%) above the prime lending rate as published in the Wall Street Journal and will be adjusted annually. Interest on deposits will be payable from the date of deposit to the date of refund or disconnection. The Company may, at its option, pay the interest at intervals it chooses but at least annually, by direct payment, or as a credit on bills.

Upon termination of service, the deposit with accrued interest will be credited to the final bill and the balance will be returned within twenty-one (21) days to the Customer.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.8 Customer Complaints and Billing Disputes
  - 2.8.1 In the event that Customer disputes any charges, Customer may notify the Company by telephone, in person or written claim describing the disputed amount. Customer will submit all documentation as may reasonably be required to support the claim. Payment may be withheld for the amounts subject to a dispute submitted prior to the Due Date. All disputes and claims for refunds must be submitted to the Company within ninety (90) days of the Bill If Customer does not submit a claim as stated above, Date. Customer waives all rights to file a claim thereafter. The Company will investigate and resolve all disputes within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the dispute and the Company's resolution of such a dispute is final. Any portion of a disputed amount deemed payable by the Company must be paid in full within ten (10) days of resolution or Customer's service may be subject to disconnection and late payment charges imposed on the overdue amount.
  - 2.8.2 Any unresolved dispute may be directed in writing to the Commission's Consumer Services Department, Missouri Public Service Commission, Governor's Office Building, 200 Madison Street, or P.O. Box 360, Jefferson City, Missouri. Customers may contact the Consumer Services Department toll free at 800-392-4211.

Customers may also contact the Missouri Office of the Public Counsel at 200 Madison Street, Suite 600, Jefferson City, Missouri 65101 or by telephone at 573-751-4857.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.9. Allowances for Interruptions in Service

#### 2.9.1 General

A. A service is interrupted when it becomes unusable to the Customer, e.g., the Customer is unable to transmit or receive, because of a failure of a component furnished by the Company under this tariff.

- B. An interruption period begins when the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative and releases it for testing and repair. An interruption period ends when the service, facility or circuit is operative.
- C. If the Customer reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative but declines to release it for testing and repair, the service, facility or circuit is considered to be impaired but not interrupted. No credit allowances will be made for a service, facility or circuit considered by the Company to be impaired.

#### 2.9.2 Limitations on Allowances

No credit allowance will be made for any interruption of service:

- A. due to the negligence of, or noncompliance with the provisions of this Tariff by, any person or entity other than the Company, including but not limited to the Customer or other common carriers connected to the service of the Company;
- B. due to the failure of power, equipment, systems, or services not provided by the Company;

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.9. Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont'd)
  - 2.9.2 Limitations on Allowances
    - C. due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of the Company;
    - D. during any period in which the Company is not given full and free access to its facilities and equipment for the purposes of investigating and correcting interruptions;
    - E. during any period in which the Customer continues to use the service on an impaired basis;
    - F. during any period when the Customer has released service to the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a Customer order for a change in service arrangements;
    - G. that occurs or continues due to the Customer's failure to authorize replacement of any element of special construction; and
    - H. that was not reported to the Company within thirty (30) days of the date that service was affected.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.9. Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont'd)
  - 2.9.3 Application of Credits for Interruptions of Service
    - A. Credits for interruptions of service, for which charges are specified on the basis of per minute of use, or on the usage of a fraction of a minute, will in no event exceed an amount equal to the initial period charge provided for under this tariff.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.10 Taxes and Fees
  - 2.10.1 All state and local taxes and fees will be listed as separate line items on the Customer's bill.
  - 2.10.2 If a municipality, other political subdivision or local agency of government, or the Commission imposes and collects from the Company a gross receipts tax, occupation tax, license tax, permit fee, franchise fee, or regulatory fee, such taxes and fees will, as allowed by law, be billed pro rata to the Customer receiving service from the Company within the territorial limits of such municipality, other political subdivision or local agency of government.
  - 2.10.3 Service will not be subject to taxes for a given taxing jurisdiction if the Customer provides the Company with written verification, acceptable to the Company and to the relevant taxing jurisdiction, that the Customer has been granted a tax exemption.
- 2.11 Returned Check Charge

A return check charge of \$25.00 will be assessed for checks returned for insufficient funds.

2.12 Restoration of Service

A reconnection fee of \$18.00 per occurrence is charged when service is reestablished for Customers who had been disconnected for non-payment.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.13 Reserved for Future Use

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.14 Disconnection and Termination of Service

The Company will not disconnect basic local service for nonpayment of toll or information service charges or any service other than basic local service.

2.14.1 Disconnection of Service Without Notice

The Company will have the right to refuse or discontinue telephone service or service arrangements without advance notice, if the acts of the Customer or the conditions upon their premises are such as to indicate an intent to defraud the Company or to use the Service to defraud a third party, including but not limited to, providing false credit information, using the services for unlawful purposes, or using services without intent to pay.

The Company will attempt to contact the Customer by telephone prior to discontinuing the Service or portions thereof. If the Company is unable to contact the Customer by telephone, a letter will be mailed to the Customer on the same date that their service or service arrangement is discontinued, explaining the reasons for such action and the Customer's right to dispute such action.

Customer is responsible for all charges attributable to Customer, even if incurred as a result of fraudulent or unauthorized use of the Service by third parties. The Company may, but is not obligated to, detect or report unauthorized or fraudulent use of Service.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.14 Disconnection and Termination of Service (Cont'd)
  - 2.14.2 Disconnection of Service Requiring Notice
    - 2.14.2.1 The Company may disconnect service for any of the following reasons provided it has notified the Customer of its intent, in writing, to disconnect service and has allowed the Customer a reasonable time of not less than ten (10) days in which to remove the cause for disconnection:
      - 2.14.2.1.A Non-compliance with Regulations. For violation of or non-compliance with Commission's rules and regulations or for violation of or non-compliance with the Company's tariffs on file with the Commission.
      - 2.14.2.1.B Failure on Contractual Obligations. For failure of the Customer to fulfill his contractual obligations for service subject to regulation by the Commission.
      - 2.14.2.1.C Refusal of Access. For failure of the Customer to permit the Company to have reasonable access to its equipment and property.
      - 2.14.2.1.D Failure to meet the Company's deposit and credit requirements.
      - 2.14.2.1.E For non-payment of a bill for regulated service, provided that the Company has made a reasonable attempt to effect collection and has given the Customer written notice of its intent to deny service if settlement of his account is not made and provided the Customer has at least ten (10) days notice.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.14 Disconnection and Termination of Service (Cont'd)
  - 2.14.2. Disconnection of Service Requiring Notice
    - 2.14.2.1.F Failure to Comply with Service Conditions. For failure of the Customer to furnish the service equipment, permits, certificates, or rights-of-way, specified by the Company as a condition to obtaining service, or if the equipment or permissions are withdrawn or terminated.
    - 2.14.2.1.G Failure to Comply with Municipal Ordinances. For failure to comply with municipal ordinances or other laws pertaining to telephone service.
    - 2.14.2.1.H Unauthorized use of the Company's equipment in a matter which creates an unsafe condition or creates the possibility of damage or destruction to such equipment.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 2.15 Unlawful Use of Service
  - 2.15.1 Service will not be used for any purpose in violation of law or for any use as to which the Customer has not obtained all required governmental approvals, authorizations, licenses, consents, and permits. The Company will refuse to furnish service to an applicant or will disconnect the service without notice of a Customer when:
    - 2.15.1.1 An order will be issued, signed by a judge finding that probable cause exists to believe that the use made or to be made of the service is prohibited by law, or
    - 2.15.1.2 The Company is notified in writing by a law enforcement agency acting within its jurisdiction is being used or will be used for the purpose of transmitting or receiving gambling information in interstate or foreign commerce in violation of the law.
  - 2.15.2 If service has been physically disconnected by law enforcement officials at the Customer's premises and if there is not presented to the Company the written finding of a judge, then upon written or verbal request of the subscriber, and agreement to pay restoral of service charges and other applicable service charges, the Company will promptly restore such service.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.16 Interference with or Impairment of Service

Service will not be used in any manner that interferes with other persons in the use of their service, prevents other persons from using their service, or otherwise impairs the quality of service to other Customers. The Company may require a Customer to immediately shut down its transmission of signals if said transmission is causing interference to others or impairing the service of others.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.17 Incomplete Calls

There will be no charge for incomplete calls. No charge will be levied for unanswered calls. Customers will receive credit for calls placed to a wrong number if the Customer notifies the Company of the error.

2.18 Overcharge

When a Customer has been overcharged, the amount will be refunded or credited to the Customer.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 2.19 Notices

Any notice required or permitted to be given under this tariff will be in writing and delivered by hand, mail, national overnight courier service or by fax if confirmed by telephone to the Customer, at the address or phone numbers shown herein or at such other address or phone numbers as will be designated from time to time.

#### 2.20 Minimum Call Completion Rate

A Customer can expect a call completion rate (number of calls completed / number of calls attempted) of not less than 90% during peak use periods for all Feature Group D services ("1+" dialing).

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.21 Emergency Calling

#### 2.21.1 General

Access to 911 and E911 service is offered solely as an aid in handling assistance calls in connection with fire, police, medical, and other emergencies. The Company is not responsible, in the absence of gross negligence or willful misconduct, for any losses, claims, demands, suits, or any liability, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the Customer or by any other party or person, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons, and for any loss, damage, or destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location, or use of such facilities. By dialing 911, the Customer agrees to release, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Company from any and all loss or claims, whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or others. Not withstanding any provision to the contrary, in no event will the Company be liable for any special, incidental, consequential, exemplary, or punitive damages of any nature whatsoever.

The Company is not responsible for any infringement or invasion of the right of privacy of any person or persons, caused, or claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion or use of the 911 service features and the equipment associated therewith, including, but not limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address or name associated with the telephone used by the party or parties accessing the 911 service.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.21 Emergency Calling

#### 2.21.2 911 Requirements

- 2.21.2.1 The Company is obligated to supply the E-911 service provider in the Company's service area with accurate information necessary to update the E-911 database at the time the Company submits subscriber Customer orders to the local exchange telecommunications company whose service is being resold pursuant to this tariff.
- 2.19.2.2 At the time that the Company provides basic local service to a Customer by means of its' own cable pair, or over any other exclusively owned facility, the Company will be obligated to make necessary equipment or facility additions in order to accurately and properly update the data for E-911.
- 2.19.2.3 The Company will be obligated to provide facilities to route calls from the ends user to the proper Public Safety Answering Point. The Company recognizes the authority of the E-911 Customer to establish service specifications and grant final approval of denial of service configurations offered by the Company.
- 2.19.2.4 The Company will collect 911 surcharges and remit all surcharges revenue to the appropriate governmental entity pursuant to RSMo. 190.310 and will observe and adhere to the Commissioner emergency telephone service rules in 4 CSR 240-34.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2.22 Special Construction

The Company may recover all or a portion of non-recurring charges associated with special construction that is undertaken in the following instances:

- 2.22.1 Where facilities are not presently available, and there is no other requirement for the facilities so constructed.
- 2.22.2 Of a type other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the furnishing of its services.
- 2.22.3 Over a route other than that which the Company would normally utilize in the furnishing of its services.
- 2.22.4 In a quantity greater than that which the Company would normally construct.
- 2.22.5 On an expedited basis.
- 2.226 On a temporary basis until permanent facilities are available.
- 2.22.7 In advance of Company's normal construction.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

- 3.1 Calculation of Rates
  - 3.1.1 The Customers usage charge is based on the actual usage of the Company's network. The chargeable time for a call is determined by the duration of the call. Chargeable time begins when connection is established between the calling station and the called station. Chargeable time ends when the calling station hangs up. If the called station hangs up, but the calling station does not, chargeable time ends when the connection is released by either automatic timing equipment in the telecommunications network or by an operator.
  - 3.1.2 Calls are billed in (six) 6 second increments with an eighteen (18) second minimum for interLATA calls and a twenty-four (24) second minimum on intraLATA calls. Billing will be rounded up to the nearest penny for each call.
  - 3.1.3 Different rates based on the time of day or day of week are described in the following rate table.

Rate Periods	From	To, but not Including	Days
Weekdays	8:00 a.m.	5:00 p.m.	Monday-Friday
Evenings	5:00 p.m.	11:00 p.m.	Monday-Friday
	5:00 p.m.	11:00 p.m.	Sunday
Night/Weekend	11:00	8:00 a.m.	Monday-Sunday
S	p.m.		
	8:00 a.m.	5:00 p.m.	Saturday-
			Sunday
	5:00 p.m.	11:00 p.m.	Saturday

The Company charges weekend rates on the following Federal holidays: New Year's Day, President's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.2 Promotional Offerings

The Company may, from time to time, engage in special Promotional Offerings limited to certain dates, times, or locations designed to attract new Customers or to increase Customers awareness of a particular tariff offering. The Company will provide tariff notification to the Commission no less than (7) days prior to the beginning of each promotion, identifying the promotion, the exchange(s) within which the promotion will be offered, and the start and end dates of the promotion. The Company will offer all promotions in a non-discriminatory manner.

3.3 Individual Case Basis ("ICB") Offerings

Pursuant to Section 392.200.8 RSMO, Customer-specific Individual Case Basis (ICB) pricing is authorized only for: (1) dedicated, nonswitched, private line, and special access services, (2) central office based switching systems which substitute for customer premise, private branch exchange (PBX) services and (3) any retail business service. Company will provide copies of its customer contracts to the Staff, upon request, on a proprietary basis.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.4 Directory Listings/Distribution

The Company will arrange for the listing of the Customer's main billing telephone number in the directory(ies) published by the dominant Local Exchange Carrier in the area. The Company will ensure that directory distribution is furnished to the Customer.

3.5 Number Intercept Service

When a Customer's telephone number changes and at the Customer's request, the Company will intercept calls to the former number and provide the applicable new telephone number, for a minimum of thirty (30) days. There will be no charge for this service.

3.6 Calling Scopes/Exchanges

The Company concurs in the calling scopes/exchanges as identified in the local exchange tariffs of AT&T Missouri (P.S.C. Mo. No. 24), Embarq (Missouri P.S.C. No. 4) and CenturyTel and Spectra Communications (P.S.C. No. 1).

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

- 3.7 Call Trace Service
  - 3.7.1 CenturyTel and Spectra Communications Exchanges

Company's call trace capability is not available on a per call basis. If a Customer wishes to have this capability, they must pre-subscribe to Company's Call Tracing Service. A monthly recurring charge applies. A Customer who pre-subscribes to Airus' Call Tracing Service and wishes to attempt a Call trace must immediately after the call press \*57, and hold the line. A recording will inform the Customer if the trace was successful, and how to proceed by contacting 911 and/or the CenturyTel/Spectra Nuisance Call Bureau. The recording will provide the number of the Nuisance Call Bureau. Under no circumstances will the Customer be provided the calling number. However, the Nuisance Call Bureau will follow up with law enforcement authorities according to CenturyTel/Spectra protocol.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.7 Call Trace Service (Cont'd)

#### 3.7.2 Embarq Exchanges

Customers receiving annoying or anonymous calls may request a telephone number change which will be provided at no charge by Airus, or the Customer may utilize Call Trace on a per activation basis with an associated charge per use. Call Trace allows the Customer to dial \*57 to automatically request that the following information be recorded:

- a) the originating telephone number
- b) the date and time of the call and
- c) the date and time call trace was activated.

When Call Trace successfully identifies a calling number, a recording instructs the Customer to call a toll free number which will assist the Customer. Should the Customer decide to prosecute the originating party, the Customer should contact Airus for further instructions. Activation of Call Trace never authorizes Airus to provide the called party with the calling party telephone number. Call Trace is a feature which must be activated through contact with Airus' business office.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.7 Call Trace Service (Cont'd)

#### 3.7.3 AT&T Missouri Exchanges

Customers receiving annoying or anonymous calls may request

- (1) a telephone number change, which will be provided at no charge by Airus or
- (2) the capability to utilize Call Trace on a per activation basis, as needed. Call Trace allows the Customer to dial a code (\*57) to automatically request that the following information be recorded:
  - The originating telephone number;
  - The date and time of the call; and
  - The date and time Call Trace was activated.

When Call Trace successfully identifies a calling number, a recording instructs the Customer to call a toll free number, which will activate a Voice Response Script and assist the Customer in establishing an open file. Should the Customer decide to prosecute the call originating party, the Customer should contact Airus for further instructions. Activation of Call Trace never authorizes Airus to provide the called party with the name or telephone number of the calling party. In the event that Call Trace is not available or is unable to resolve the case, it may be necessary to place a manual trap on the Customer's telephone line.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service

Local Exchange Service is telephone service that entitles the Customer to originate local calls, without toll charges, to all local exchange access lines connected to a Central Office (CO) of the exchange, or to all exchange access lines served by COs of the extended local service area where comprised of more than one exchange. Service will be provided where facilities are available from the Local Exchange Company (LEC). Service is classified as business service and business rates apply when any of the following conditions exist:

When the service is furnished at a location where a business, trade or practice is performed and where the use of the location is not confined primarily to domestic activities.

Service for social clubs will be considered business service.

When the directory listing is to be a business listing, except when a residence telephone number is advertised as an alternate call number in connection with a business telephone number.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2nd Revised Sheet No. 52 Cancels 1st Revised Sheet No. 52

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

#### CenturyTel Local Calling Exchanges 3.8.1

CenturyTel exchanges where Airus' local exchange service is available are specified below.

Alton
Ashland
Augusta
Ava
Belle
Bland
Blue Eye
Bourbon
Bradleyville
Branson
Branson West
Buffalo
Cabool
Cape Fair
Cassville
Caulfield
Cedar Creek
Centralia
Chamois
Clark
Columbia
Conway
Crane
Cross Timbers
Cuba
Dardenne/Lake St.
Louis
Defiance
Dora
Elkland

Issued: May 16, 2014

Effective: June 15, 2014 Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

FILED Missouri Public Service Commission JL-2014-0464

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.1 CenturyTel Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Exeter
Foley
Fordland
Foristell
Forsyth
Gainesville
Galena
Hallsville
Hawk Point
Hermann
Hermitage
High Hill
Highlandville
Holstein
Hurley
Jamestown
Jenkins
Jonesburg
Kimberling City
Koshkonong
Leasburg
Louisburg
Mano
Mansfield
Marshfield
Marthasville
Morrison
Moscow Mills
Mount Sterling
Mtn. View

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.1 CenturyTel Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

New MelleNianguaO'FallonOld MonroeOzarkPittsburgPrairie HomePrestonProtemReeds SpringRocheportRockaway BeachSt. JamesSt. PetersSafeSeymourShell KnobSpartaSturgeonSummersvilleThayerTheodosiaThomasvilleTroyTruxtonUrbanaVichyWarrentonWashburnWasola		
O'Fallon Old Monroe Ozark Pittsburg Prairie Home Preston Protem Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton		
Old Monroe Ozark Pittsburg Prairie Home Preston Protem Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton	Niangua	
Ozark Pittsburg Pittsburg Prairie Home Preston Protem Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Pittsburg Prairie Home Preston Protem Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Old Monroe	
Prairie Home Preston Protem Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Ozark	
Preston Protem Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Pittsburg	
Protem Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Prairie Home	
Reeds Spring Rocheport Rockaway Beach St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Preston	
RocheportRockaway BeachSt. JamesSt. PetersSafeSeymourShell KnobSpartaSturgeonSummersvilleThayerTheodosiaThomasvilleTroyTruxtonUrbanaVichyWarrentonWashburn		
Rockaway Beach St. James St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
St. JamesSt. PetersSafeSeymourShell KnobSpartaSturgeonSummersvilleThayerTheodosiaThomasvilleTroyTruxtonUrbanaVichyWarrentonWashburn		
St. Peters Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Safe Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Seymour Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Shell Knob Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Sparta Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Seymour	
Sturgeon Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Summersville Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Sparta	
Thayer Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Sturgeon	
Theodosia Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Summersville	
Thomasville Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Troy Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Truxton Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Thomasville	
Urbana Vichy Warrenton Washburn		
Vichy Warrenton Washburn	Truxton	
Warrenton Washburn	Urbana	
Washburn	Vichy	
	Warrenton	
Wasola		
	Wasola	

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.1 CenturyTel Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Wentzville
West Plains
Wheatland
Willow Springs
Winfield
Wooldridge
Wright City

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2nd Revised Sheet No. 56 Cancels 1st Revised Sheet No. 56

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

#### AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges 3.8.2

AT&T exchanges where Airus' local exchange service is available are specified below.

Adrian
Advance
Agency
Altenburg-Frohna
Antonia
Archie
Argyle
Armstrong
Ash Grove
Beaufort
Bell City
Belton*
Benton
Billings
Bismarck
Bloomfield
Bloomsdale
Blue Springs*
Bonne Terre
Boonville
Bowling Green
Bridgeton+
Brookfield
Camdenton
Campbell
Cape Girardeau
Cardwell
Carl Junction
Carrollton

Issued: May 16, 2014

Effective: June 15, 2014 Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

FILED **Missouri Public** Service Commission JL-2014-0464

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.2 AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Carthage	
Caruthersville	
Cedar Hill	
Center	
Chaffee	
Charleston	
Chesterfield	
Chillicothe	
Clarksville	
Clever	
Climax Springs	
Creve Couer+	
De Kalb	
De Soto	
Deering	
Delta	
Dexter	
Downing	
E. Independence*	
East Prairie	
Edina	
Eldon	
Elsberry	
Essex	
Eureka	
Excelsior Springs	
Fair Grove	
Farley	
Farmington	
Fayette	

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.2 AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Fenton
Ferguson+
Festus- Crystal City
Fisk
Flat River
Florissant+
Frankford
Fredericktown
Freeburg
Fulton
Gideon
Gladstone*
Glasgow
Grain Valley
Gravois Mills
Gray Summit
Greenwood
Hannibal
Harvester
Hayti
Herculaneum- Pevely
Higbee
High Ridge
Hillsboro
Holcomb
Homersville
Imperial
Independence*
Jackson
Jasper

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.2 AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Joplin
Kansas City
Kennett
Kirksville
Kirkwood+
Knob Noster
La Monte
Ladue+
Lake Ozark
Lamar
Lancaster
Leadwood
Lees Summit*
Liberty*
Lilbourne
Linn
Lockwood
Louisiana
Macks Creek
Malden
Manchester
Marble Hill
Marceline
Marionville
Marwill
Marston
Maxville
Mehlville+
Meta
Mexico

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.2 AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Moborby
Moberly
Monett
Montgomery City
Morehouse
Nashua*
Neosho
Nevada
New Franklin
New Madrid
Nixa
Oak Ridge
Oakville+
Old Appleton
Oran
Osage Beach
Overland+
Pacific
Parkville*
Patton
Paynesville
Perryville
Pierce City
Pocahontas- New
Wells
Pond
Poplar Bluff
Portage de Sioux
Portageville
Puxico
Quilin

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.2 AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Raytown*
Republic
Richmond
Richwoods
Risco
Riverview+
Rogersville
Rushville
San Antonio
Sappington+
Scott City
Sedalia
Senath
Sikeston
Slater
Southville
South Kansas City*
Spanish Lake+
Springfield
St. Charles
St. Clair
St. Joseph
St. Louis
St. Marys
Ste. Geneview
Stanberry
Strafford
Tiffany Springs*
Trenton
Tuscumbia

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.2 AT&T Missouri Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Union	
Valley Park	
Versailles	
Vienna	
Walnut Grove	
Wardell	
Ware	
Washington	
Webb City	
Webster Groves+	
Wellsville	
Westphalia	
Willard	
Wyatt	

\*Technically labeled as a "zone" within the Kansas City Metropolitan Exchange. +Technically labeled as a "zone" within the St. Louis Metropolitan Exchange.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2nd Revised Sheet No. 63 Cancels 1st Revised Sheet No. 63

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

Spectra Communications Local Calling Exchanges 3.8.3

Spectra Communications exchanges where Airus' local exchange service is available are specified below.

Amazonia
Annapolis
Arcola
Aurora
Avenue City
Avilla
Belgrade
Belleview
Birch Tree
Bolckow
Boss
Braymer
Bronaugh-
Moundville
Brunswick (Triplett)
Bunker
Caledonia
Cameron
Cameron Canton
Cameron Canton Centerville
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale Collins
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale Collins Concordia Cosby
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale Collins Concordia
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale Collins Concordia Cosby Dadeville Dalton
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale Collins Concordia Cosby Dadeville Dalton Easton
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale Collins Concordia Cosby Dadeville Dalton Easton Edgar Springs
Cameron Canton Centerville Clarence Clarksdale Collins Concordia Cosby Dadeville Dalton Easton

Issued: May 16, 2014

Effective: June 15, 2014 Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

FILED **Missouri Public** Service Commission JL-2014-0464

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.3 Spectra Communications Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Ellsinore
Elmer
Eminence
Everton
Ewing
Fillmore
Fremont
Golden City
Gorin
Gower
Greenfield
Grovespring
Hamilton
Hartville
Helena
Houston
Humansville
Hunnewell
Irondale
Ironton
Jerico Springs
Kahoka
Keytesville
Kidder
Kingston
LaBelle
Laddonia
LaGrange
La Plata
Lawson

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.3 Spectra Communications Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Lesterville
Lewistown
Licking
Lowry City
Macon
Manes
Maysville
Milo
Monroe City
Montauk Park
Monticello
Mt. Vernon
Mtn. Grove
Nebo
Norwood
Oates
Osborn
Osceola
Palmyra
Paris
Perry
Plattsburg
Potosi
Raymondville
Revere
Roby
Rockville
Rosendale
Santa Fe
Sarcoxie

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.3 Spectra Communications Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Savannah
Schell City
Shelbina
Shelbyville
Sheldon
Stewartsville
Stoutsville
Timber
Trimble
Turney
Van Buren
Vanzant
Walker
Wayland (includes
customers in base
rate areas
Alexandria)
Weaubleau
West Quincy
Whitesville
Winona

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

2nd Revised Sheet No. 67 Cancels 1st Revised Sheet No. 67

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

**Embarg Local Calling Exchanges** 3.8.4

Embarg exchanges where Airus' local exchange service is available are specified below.

Appleton CityBlackburnBlairstownBrazitoBucknerButlerCalhounCaliforniaCamden PointCentertownCenterviewChilhoweeClarksburgClintonCoalCole CampCraigDearbornDeepwaterEdgertonEugeneFairfax
Blairstown Brazito Buckner Butler Calhoun California Camden Point Centertown Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Brazito Buckner Butler Calhoun California Camden Point Centertown Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Butler Calhoun California Camden Point Centertown Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Calhoun California Camden Point Centertown Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
California Camden Point Centertown Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Camden Point Centertown Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Centertown Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Centerview Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Chilhowee Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Clarksburg Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Clinton Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Coal Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Cole Camp Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Craig Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Dearborn Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Deepwater Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Edgerton Eugene Fairfax
Eugene Fairfax
Fairfax
Ferrelview
Fort Leonard Wood
Green Ridge
Hardin
Harrisonville
Henrietta
Holden
Holt

Issued: May 16, 2014

Effective: June 15, 2014 Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

FILED **Missouri Public** Service Commission JL-2014-0464

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.4 Embarq Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Hopkins
Houstonia
Ionia
Jefferson City
Kearney
King City
Kingsville
Lake Lotawana
Lebanon
Leeton
Lexington
Lincoln
Lone Jack
Malta Bend
Maryville
Missouri City
Montrose
Mound City
New Bloomfield
Newburg
Norborne
Oak Grove
Odessa
Orrick
Otterville
Pickering
Platte City
Pleasant Hill
Richland
Rolla

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.8 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd.)

3.8.4 Embarq Local Calling Exchanges (Cont'd.)

Russellville
Salem
Smithton
St. Robert
St. Thomas
Strasburg
Sweet Springs
Syracuse
Taos
Tarkio
Tipton
Urich
Warrensburg
Warsaw
Waverly
Waynesville
Wellington
Weston
Windsor

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

3.9 Directory Assistance

Directory Assistance (DA) is defined as furnishing aid in obtaining telephone numbers. The Directory Assistance operator will not transfer, forward or redial a Customer's call to any other location for any purpose other than the provision of DA service. The service is furnished subject to the condition that there will be no abuse or fraudulent use of the service. Abuse or fraudulent use of the service includes the obtaining, or attempting to obtain, or assisting another to obtain or to attempt to obtain Directory Assistance service, by rearranging, tampering with, or making connection with any facilities of the Company, or by any trick, scheme, false representation, or false credit device, or by or through any other fraudulent means or device whatsoever, with attempt to avoid payment, in whole or in part, of the regular charge for such service. In addition to any other action authorized by this Tariff, the Company may, in such cases of abuse or fraudulent use, assess appropriate Directory Assistance charges on the Customer's regular telephone account.

3.10 Custom Calling Services

Custom Calling Service is an optional service arrangement of central office services furnished to residential and business Customers. Custom Calling Features are offered subject to availability and suitably equipped central office facilities.

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

# SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

#### 4.1.1 Business Service - AT&T Missouri Exchanges

(A) Service Charges

	Non-Recurring Charge
Service Order Charge First Line or Trunk	\$49.44
Changes, To change class, type or grade of service(per line or trunk)	\$12.25

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

- 4.1.1 Business Service AT&T Missouri Exchanges (Cont'd)
  - (B) Monthly Recurring Charges
    - (1) Flat Rate Service

<u>Group</u>	Flat Rate
A	\$17.50
В	\$31.00
С	\$36.00
D	\$45.00

(2) <u>Message Rate Service</u>

<u>Group</u>	Message Rate
A	\$14.50
В	\$22.00
С	\$22.00
D	\$25.00

(3) <u>Measured Rate Service</u>

Rate Band	Initial	Each Additional
	Minute	Minute
0 - 14	\$0.04	\$0.01
15 - 28	\$0.05	\$0.02
Over 28	\$0.06	\$0.03

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

- 4.1.1 Business Service AT&T Missouri Exchanges (Cont'd)
  - (B) Monthly Recurring Charges (Cont'd)
    - (4) Exchange Access Arrangements

	Total Exchange Access Arrangements
<u>Group</u>	In Primary Service Area
А	1 - 4,999
В	5,000 - 59,999
С	60,000 - 229,999
D	230,000 - Over

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

Non-Recurring

## SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont'd)

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

4.1.2 Business Service - CenturyTel Missouri Exchanges

#### (A) <u>Service Charges</u>

	Charge
Service Order Charge First Line or Trunk	\$24.02 (First Line) \$8.63 (Each Add'I Line)
Line Connection Charge	\$13.44
To restore service that has been temporarily disconnected by the Company (per line or trunk, per order)	\$22.09

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

4.1.2 Business Service - CenturyTel Missouri Exchanges (Cont'd)

#### (B) Monthly Recurring Charges

Rate Group	Central Office Lines	<u>Rate</u>
1	1 - 1,060	\$15.64
2	1,061 - 2,900	\$16.61
3	2,901 - 7,000	\$17.59
4	7,001 - 25,000	\$18.57
5	Over 25,001	\$19.56

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

- 4.1.3 Business Service Embarq Missouri Exchanges
  - (A) <u>Service Charges</u>

Non-Recurring Charge
\$20.95 (Complex) \$12.25 (Simple)
\$31.00 (Complex) \$24.95 (Simple)
er) \$18.00

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

- 4.1.3 Business Service Embarq Missouri Exchanges (Cont'd)
  - (B) Monthly Recurring Charges

(2)

(1) Flat Rate Service

	<u>Rate</u>
Individual Line Trunk	\$22.00 \$34.00
Measured Rate S	<u>ervice</u>

Individual Line	\$18.00
Trunk	\$22.00

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

- 4.1.4 Business Service Spectra Communications Exchanges
  - (A) <u>Service Charges</u>

Non-Recurring	
Charge	

Service Order Charge First Line or Trunk	\$24.43 (First Line) \$8.77(Each Add'l Line)
Line Connection Charge	\$13.67
To restore service that has been temporarily disconnected by the Company (per line or trunk, per order)	\$22.47

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.1 Local Exchange Service (Cont'd)

- 4.1.4 Business Service Spectra Communications Exchanges
  - (B) Monthly Recurring Charges

Rate Group	Central Office Lines	<u>Rate</u>
1	1 - 1,060	\$14.40
2	1,061 - 2,900	\$15.38
3	2,901 - 7,000	\$16.38
4	7,001 - 25,000	\$17.38
5	Over 25,001	\$18.39

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

SECTION 4. <u>RATES AND CHARGES</u> (Cont'd)				
4.2	Direc	rectory Assistance Service		
	4.2.1	AT&T Missouri Exchanges		
		Customer Dialed - after call allowance	\$0.82 Per Call (Maximum 2 requests per cal)	
	4.2.2	CenturyTel Missouri Exchanges		
		Local DA National DA	\$0.58 Per Call \$1.35 Per Call	
	4.2.3	Embarq Missouri Exchanges		
		Customer Dialed - after call allowance		
		Local and National DA	\$1.45 Per Call	
	4.2.4	Spectra Communications Exchanges		
		Customer Dialed - after call allow	vance	
		Local and National DA	\$0.52 Per Call	

cal and National DA \$0.52 Per Call (Maximum 2 requests per cal)

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.3 Custom Calling Services

## 4.3.1 AT&T Missouri Exchanges

Monthly Recurring Charge
Per Line

Call Waiting	\$8.00
Call Forwarding	\$8.50
Three Way Calling	\$7.50

#### 4.3.2 CenturyTel Missouri Exchanges

Monthly Recurring Charge	
Per Line	

Call Waiting	\$5.40
Call Forwarding	\$3.62
Three Way Calling	\$4.72
Remote Call Forwarding	\$19.84

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607

#### 4.3 Custom Calling Services (Cont'd)

#### 4.3.3 Embarq Missouri Exchanges

Monthly Recurring Charge Per Line

Call Waiting	\$6.00
Call Forwarding	\$6.00
Three Way Calling	\$5.00
Remote Call Forwarding	\$18.30

#### 4.3.4 Spectra Communications Exchanges

Monthly Recurring Charge Per Line

Call Waiting	\$4.72
Call Forwarding	\$3.62
Three Way Calling	\$4.72

Issued: April 11, 2014

Effective: May 11, 2014

Issued by: Vice President Regulatory Affairs Airus, Inc. 840 South Canal Street, 7<sup>th</sup> Floor Chicago, IL 60607